Andover Board of Education ~ Regular Meeting Agenda

We strive to create a safe educational environment that establishes a foundation for all students to become creative, moral, and
compassionate people. We will provide the resources needed to support our educational practices with an understanding of our fiscal
responsibilities to the community.

2022-2023 BOE Goals

@ Support the use of differentiated instruction to increase student achievement

@ Collaborate with the community & staff to ensure the needs of the students are communicated and addressed

€ Evaluate and optimize board processes & focus on continued professional development for board members, AES teachers and staff
@ Maintain fiscal accountability and focus on optimization and long-term planning

Date: April 19, 2023
Start Time: 7:00 pm
Location: School Library for BOE/Virtual Meeting for Public

Agenda ltems

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance
2. Comments from th_e Public

3. Commhniéétions “
4

Approval of Minutes
e Regular Meeting of March 8, 2023

o

Opportunity to Add or Delete Agenda Items
6. Celebrations

7. Reports

Chairperson’s Oral Report

Superintendent’s Report

Principal's Report, Enroliment Report, Health Report

Financial Report

Items for Discussion & Actions

1. Item: Board of Education Policies — Updated Policies (1000 Series, 1100's & 1200’s)
Action: Vote to Accept Revisions/Review of 1000 Series, 1100's & 1200’s, Board of Education Policies

2. Item: Board of Education Policies — Updated Policies (1000 Series: 1300’s, 1400's & 1500)
Action: No Action at This Time (First Reading)

3. ltem: Discussion of Capital Improvement Project — Floors
Action: Possible Action

F. Liaison Reports

moow»

8. Comments from the Public on Agenda Items
9. Executive Session — For the Purpose of Discussion of Superintendent's Contract
10. Other Action ltems

11. Upcoming Meetings
e Regular Board Meeting — May 10, 2023
e Items for Next Meeting — New Policies to Address Medical Mandates

12. Adjournment

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/|/87220610398?pwd=amFa0OXZVMmhVakVPamoON0JYWKFOQT09

Meeting ID: 872 2061 0398
Passcode: 200920
One tap mobile, +16465588656,,87220610398# US (New York), +16469313860,,87220610398# US



UNAPPROVED

ANDOVER ELEMENTARY SCHOOL
ANDOVER, CT 06232
Regular Board of Education Meeting
Wednesday March 8, 2023
Virtual Meeting/School Library

PRESENT: Chairperson Gerard Cremé, Chris Bernard, Shannon Louden, Steven Fuss,
Celeste Willard, Caitlin Greenhouse, Mike Beckwith

ADMINISTRATION: Valerie Bruneau, Superintendent
Taylor Parker, Principal
Terri Smith, Finance Manager

OTHERS: Jennie Morrell, Teacher; Kirstina Frazier, Teacher; Delaney Pike, Student
Teacher; Anne Cremé; Families Here for Invention Convention

1. Call to order/ Pledge of Allegiance
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m., followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Comments from the Public — None.
3. Communications — None.
4. Approval of Minutes

C. Greenhouse made a motion to approve the minutes from the Board of Education
Meeting of February 8, 2023, C. Willard seconded no changes.

6-0-0 (PASSED)

C. Bernard made a motion to approve the minutes from the Board of Education Special
meeting of February 21, 2023, C. Willard seconded no changes.

4-0-2 (PASSED) (C. Greenhouse and S. Fuss abstained)
S. Opportunity to Add or Delete Agenda Items — None.

6. Celebrations
-Chairperson G. Cremé and the BOE members congratulated the winners of the Invention
Convention, E. St. Rock, B. Warriner, B. Boland, D. Haggerty, E. Chalfant, and L. Fowler, and
their families.
-Thank you to the BOE as part of Board Appreciation Month (March).
-Thank you to T. Parker for completing the K-3 Reading Waver.
-Congratulations to H. Boris as our representative at the Regional Spelling Bee.



UNAPPROVED

7. Reports
A. Chairperson’s Oral Report — None.
B. Superintendent’s Report
-After School Innovation Grant is running very well.
-Need to apply for the Security Grant.
-No summer grants yet.
C. Principal’s Report
Around the School:
-After school program is running well; activities offered in areas of Art, STEM, Physical
Activity, Music, and more.
-6 grade DARE education is starting in March.
-Read Across America program kicked off in March. Parents and family members are
invited to come in and read in classrooms.
Professional Development & Curriculum:
-Reading Program Waiver has been submitted to the State of CT.
-Some staff will be taking part in adaptive technology professional development through
SERC in March and April.
Days to Remember: March 29 Early Release-Conferences; April 7-14 No School (April
Break)
Enrollment: 198
Financial Report: As presented.
Items for Discussion and Actions

=

1. Board of Education Policies — Updated Policies (1000 Series, 1100’s & 1200’s)
Discussion; no action taken.

2. Budget Transfers

S. Louden made a motion to approve the budget transfers as presented, seconded by C.
Greenhouse.

7-0-0 (PASSED)
F. Liaison Reports — None.
8. Comments from the Public — None.
9. Executive Session
S. Louden made a motion at 7:50 p.m. to go into Executive Session for the purpose of
Discussing Legal Advice/Opinion Under Attorney/Client Privilege, inviting V. Bruneau and

T. Smith, seconded by C. Bernard.

7-0-0 (PASSED)



UNAPPROVED

S. Louden made a motion to exit Executive Session at 8:58 p.m., seconded by C.
Greenhouse.

7-0-0 (PASSED)
10. Other Action Items — None.

11. Upcoming Meetings
-Regular Board Meeting — April 19, 2023

12. Adjournment
C. Willard made a motion to adjourn at 8:59 p.m., seconded by C. Greenhouse.
7-0-0 (Passed)
Respectfully Submitted,

Gretchen L. Stein
Andover BOE Board Clerk



Our Micsion at AES ic to provide a creative and challenging curricvlum for ALL in a cafe

environment while nurturing the values of responsibility, respectfviness, and a desire for learning.
Board of Education Meeting
April 19th, 2023

Around the Schoof Upcoming Dates

* We had two 6th graders represent usin May 4 - Talent Show
the 2023 Elementary Honors Festival in May 9 - SBAC Testing begins
band and chorus! Congrats to Kylie and May 25 - Evening of the Arts
Elena! May 26 - No School (PD)

* We named 6 semifinalists for the May 29 - No School (Memorial Day)
invention convention and hope to hear
back by the end of April on any finalists
advancing.

* 18 students won a raffle prize for
completing their book bingo! Thank you
to all of our families for your support of
literacy at homel!

* % % %

Profeccional Deve/opmenz‘ & Curricolum
* We are continuing our professional work in the area of literacy. On May 26th, our next
professional development, we will continue examining best practices for explicit reading
instruction in the areas of using decodable texts and assessments.
* SBAC assessments will begin May 9th.




ENROLLMENT REPORT

April 1, 2023

Pre-K 17 17 2 34

K 12 11 2 23

Grade1l | 13 12 12 2 37

Grade 2 15 1 15

Grade 2/3 | 16 1 16

Grade 3 15 1 15

Grade4 |22 1 22

Grade 5 18 1 18

Grade 6 18 1 18

| Outplaced | 1 = 1
Total 199

2017-2018 School Year 2018-2019 School Year 2019-2020 School Year
August 206 August 191 August 194
September 204 September 191 September 194
October 204 October 191 October 196
November 202 November 192 November 198
December 204 December 193 December 203
January 202 January 194 January 201
February 203 February 195 February 204
March 203 March 196 March 205
April 203 April 198 April 205
May 204 May 198 May 205
June 203 June 198 June 205
2020-2021 School Year 2021-2022 School Year 2022-2023 School Year
August 177 August 193 August 200
September 176 September 193 September 201
October 175 October 193 October 198
November 179 November 193 November 198
December 179 December 191 December 198
January 180 January 192 January 197
February 181 February 194 February 198
March 183 March 192 March 198
April 184 April 193 April 199
May 184 May 193 May
June 183 June 193 June

Prepared by: R. Crandall



Andover Elementary School — Health Services Summary

March 1, 2023 — March 31, 2023

83 Different Students came for a Total Number of 220 Visits **
46 Visits were Injury related

136 Visits were lliness related

41 Visits were Other Health related (I.E. not ill or injured)

28 Visits were Case Management related

** These numbers are not meant to add up to the Total Number of Visits

Not included in the Total Visits numbers:
Medication Administration: 92
Treatments: 4

Total number of Health Screenings: 0
New cases of Lice: 0

Embedded Ticks Removed: 1

Continuous monitoring and tracking of Covid and Covid like iliness.



01 -08°9801 000 08°925°€9 00" 0¥ ‘29 ONILY3IH/1I0 0000-0000-729-200
0¢ 78° 188 0070 81" 79¢ 00°002°1 SY9 31L.109 0000-0000-£¢9-¢00
16 96" €119 00°256°8T 6500 "6¢ §6'59/'%9 ALIDTY¥10373 0000-0000-229-200
0 00642 00°0 00°0 00922 $3I7ddNS S3IANLS TVID0S 0000-0000-+19-200
0 00°08.'T 00°0 000 000521 $3I1ddNS ION3IDS 0000-0000-£19-200
Lf Tb* 299 00°0 65" 3¢ 00°0S0°T S3I7ddNS HLWW 0000-0000-219-¢00
A 00° 208 00°0 00° 865 00°00T°T $317d4dNS v13 0000-0000-T19-¢00
1§ e 25881 ¥9°198°¢ 20'98L°01 00005 ‘¥ $317ddNS T¥YINID 0000-0000-019-200
01 19°ShL'T 00°0 ¢e ot 00°0%6°T 13AVHL 0000-0000-085-¢00
0§ 97" STH' 4T 08" 9% ‘yE 0780801 00°000°88¢2 NOILINL 0000-0000-095-200
8 00°00S ‘T 00°00%*¢ 17°£09'Y T1°205°6 ONIGNIE B SNILNI¥d 0000-0000-095-200
{ 00°096 0070 00°010'T 00°000'¢ ONISILNIAAY 0000-0000-0¥5-200
08 T9'TT6*S 9" 787’y 6706 LT 00°98T° L2 SNOLLYDINNWOD 0000-0000-0£9-200
£6 69°STS 0T £6° 6L 6Y ¥¢°068'68 95768 69T NOLLYIYOdSNVYL INIANLS 0000-0000-0T5-200
12 0¢" 2192 0471589 00°0 00°000°€€ TONYNILNIVW B ¥IVdI¥ ADOTONHDIL 0000-0000-2€#-200
€6 79" SEE Y 90°T9¢‘6 06" 965 Ly 00°262°19 SIDIAYIS IONVYNILNIVW B ¥IVdIY 0000-0000-0£-200
18 08°0€0°T 00°0 02'697't 00"005°S IDIAYIS DNINVID 0000-0000-0¢¥-200
£9 §5'96L°C 00°0 ShE08'y 00°009°L SPDINYIS TYOINHIAL 0000-0000-05€-¢00
89T 1060 T¢E 00°0009¢ L0°5€0 67 8" 246 €S SIDTIAYIS TYNOISSIA0Yd ¥IHLIO 0000-0000-0€-200
Ll 00" Liv 00°0 00°€TS‘'T 00'096'T SIHIAYIS TYNOISSIH0¥d 0000-0000-0££-200
£6 T0° 2066 09°78¢ ‘6¢ 66" v.2' 26 00" €95 T¥T SJAS TVNOLLYDNA3 TWNOISSIH0dd 0000-0000-02E-200
89 00" STE 00°0 00°989 00°000°T IIAYIS FATLVYLSINIWAY 0000-0000-0T€-200
06 ¥2'90% 68 00°09¢'€9 09° Z8T°€0S 09" 67" €19 S1I4IN38 TVIN3Q B TVOIQ3W 0000-0000-08¢-200
b1 00°TEZ 7 00°0 00" 69¢ 00°009°C "dWOD LNWAOTdWINN 0000-0000-09¢-200
0 00°000°ST 00°0 000 00°000°¢ST 1N0ANG INIWIHTLIN 0000-0000-0¥Z-¢00
09 ¥9°686 Ty 00°0 IS AAY A4 L07987 48 NOISN3Id 0000-0000-0£2-200
9 97" bE'§T 00°0 80° /2L Ly v pL0°EL YIIAIN B YOI 0000-0000-0¢Z-200
Tl Tr'¥69'¢ 00°0 655006 00" 00L' T JONVINSNI dNO¥D 0000-0000-0TZ-2¢00
8 1A 00°050'T AT 00'00S°¢ JWILYIA0 0000-0000-0¢£T-200
86 96" 265"y 16°086'LL 82" TTE v6T §1°678°947 IALLVILSINIWGY 0000-0000-TTT-200
16 £9°¢9p 97 6°718'8! 12" v 561 92'082°70¢ SITUVIVS L40ddnS 0000-0000-0TT-¢00
00T 00°0 00°0 00°092°¢ 00°092°7 J00HJS ¥IWWNS 0000-0000-60T-200
6 00" 04T 0T 00°0 00°096 00°00T‘TT AVTINDTHEND Wil1X3 0000-0000-80T-¢00
€l 00082 00°0 000012 00"088°2 SINYVIVS ' SaNs vI 0000-0000-90T-200
89 67'9E9'8 00°0 T SP1'8T 000892 SILNLTLSANS ¥IHOVIL 0000-0000-£0T-200
6 09°090°¢ 0L9¢T'¢T 9b" 55508 977518 SINVLSISSY TYNOILDNYLSNI 0000-0000-20T-200
06 e 810 2¢ L£§°50T'865 68°0LL'256 09'768°755‘T SITYVIVS |, SHIHOVIL 0000-0000-T0T-200
pasn % 3due|eg 0d J3qUMOU3 QLA papuadx3  3abpng paL)Lpow uo13d1Jds8@ PI 2UN0JJY

£2/0€/90 :40 s¥

SoA .S3iuno

2y ded apn|dul

S9A :A1LALIDY 0437 dLYS

6660-6066-666-200 03

£2/0€/90 03 72/10/L0
0000-0000-000-200

‘poLIad 1URJJIN)
153Unoddy Jo abuey

14009y aJniLpuadx3 woisn) AJeuwuns €707

UOLIBINPT JO PJBOY JIAOPUY

WY 92:60
£207 ‘9 | Lddv



SEBLE ‘660 Bv'06S°890'T  WEUESL4SS'T  HENBLIGR'Y (€301 [Buld
0 00°0 000 000 00°0 palabpng-uoN [euLd
68 €€ 615 657 6v'0€S'890'T  ¥STESLLSS'T  ¥ETLBLITSO'Y pa1abpng |euld
@ £6°615 68y G OR 090 WSTESLNSS'T WISy [B304 pund
0 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 pa1abpng-uoN punj
68 £€'6TS 65Y 6v"0ES‘890°T  ¥SESLLSS'T  VETIBL'TSO'W pa13bpng puni
¢l 2675807 00°0 80°¥9.'S 00°048°Z S334 B sana 0000-0000-0T8-200
01 ¥8°95€ ‘7T 0070 9T Ere'T 00°00L°€T VIQ3W/¥3LNd0D 0000-0000-059-200
0 00°08 0070 00°0 00°08 $1008 S3TANLS TYID0S 0000-0000-7¥9-200
0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 $3008 HLVW 0000-0000-¢¥9-200
¢ €8T LTy 00°0 9" €T 68° 0ty $¥008 v13 0000-0000-T#9-200
U 8" 91¢ 00°0 9" 4vs 00°29L S¥IIQ0T¥3d/SN009 0000-0000-0+9-00
a 7.°780'6 00°0 9797’1 00°60¢ ‘0T 135310 0000-0000-629-200
0§ [VARTAN 00°0 (Y4 007057 INIT0SWD 0000-0000-9¢9-200
pasn % aoue|eg 0d J3qundu3 QLA papuadx3  1abBpng paLjLpow uoL1dids3q pI U022y
14009y dunitpuadx3 woisn) AJewwns €207 WY 92:60
7 0N abied uoL1eINp3 JO pJeog JIAopuy €202 ‘9 | LJdy



0000 L0J3u0d 333[40

6 00" 04101 00°0 00°096 00°00T°TT
6 00" 0¥T 0T 00°0 00°096 00°00T'TT [P0 [043U0D
b 00"0¥T"0T 00°0 00°096 00°00T'TT sqn|/butyeo) (000-000T-80T-200
IINIWIND ViLX3 0000-0000-80T-200
£l 00°08. 000 00°00T'¢ 00°088°¢ 0000 L043u0) 33340
£L 00°08L 00°0 000017 00°088'¢ [B30L [0J43U0)
4] 00° 082 00°0 00°0%0°2 00°08'7 'anp3 {BLIAdS VI "3sqns 0000-00¢1-90T-200
001 00°0 00°¢0 00°09 00°09 03y VI “1sqnS 0000-000T-90T~¢00
SITAVIVS " SANS VI 0000-0000-90T-200
89 67" ¥€9°8 00°0 [T 28] 0070892 0000 {043u0) 133[q0
89 62'9€9°8 00°0 TL°SHT'8T 0070897 [B10L |0J3U0)
0¢ 00°08€'T 00°0 007009 00°086°T *anp3 "23ds JayIeaL 'Isgns 0000-002T-£0T-200
1L 67" ¥52'L 000 [P 1A 00°008'+2 "boy Jayeal "asgns 0000-000T-£0T-200
SILNLTISANS ¥IHIVAL 0000-0000-£0T-200
14 09°090°S 0L°9¢1°€T 9955506 9.°75L"8L 0000 L043u0) 123(qo
1) 09°090"¢ 0L°9¢1°€2 99" 65508 9/°75L°8L [B301 |0J3U0)
66 00" Lve 8" 226", 86" 65261 97" 525" 12 900U AdeaqL1/eLpaw 0000-0¢¢¢-¢0T-200
16 0p €1L'y Wwne'st 88°662 T¢ 08" 22218 "aNp3 *3dS *1SSY UDLIINJISUT 0000-00¢1-20T-200
0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 "155y U0LIoNJISuT 0000-000T-¢0T-¢00
SINVISISSY TYNOILINYISNI 0000-0000-¢0T-200
66 be"810'2¢ £€° 501869 68°0LL'2¢6 09°¥68 755 ‘T 0000 L0J3u0) 123(q0
66 pE'9T0°2C ££750T 865 68°04L"2€6 09°%68°255‘T (B304 |0J1U0)
66 6°666 87°8€9°¢€ 09'T28°€S 00°09788 SOLJB[ES U231 [BUOLIINIISUT 0000-0£¢¢-T0T-200
0 000 00°0 00°0 00°0 Adeles AJeaqLl 0000~0¢¢¢-T01-200
00T 00°0 60" €8T 02 96" 262" 2¢ §0"9L¥° 25 JayaeaL ysads 8000-0ST¢-T0T-700
00T 96°6¥¢ 09°€09°29 72995 ‘80T 00°027'9/1 Jaydesl "p3 [eLads 0000-002T-T0T-¢00
86 9°89L°0¢ 00°089°9.% 60°0608€. G5 €S SEL'T SJaldesL 0000-000T-TOT-200
SITHVIVS | SYIHOVIL 0000-0000-T0T-¢00
pasn % 3due|eg 0d Jaqunoul QLA papuadx3  33bpng paL)Lpow uo11dLJ353a pI UN0ddy
SoA +AILALIOY 0437 dLyS £2/0£/90 03 77/T0/L0 :poLIad Iua.im)
§2/0€/90 40 SY  S3A :SIuUN02Y ded apn|dul £666-6666-666-200 03 0000-0000-000-200 :Sun0ddy jo abuey
14009y dJn3Lpuadx3 woisn) | eI £707 WY /2060
T :ON 2bed uoLIBINP3 JO pJeog JaAopuy €207 ‘9 [ Lady



99 91" LvE' ST 0070 80° L2 LY 771 RYA 3JedLpa § YOI 0000-000T-0¢-200
VDI § VOIS 0000-0000-0¢z-200

L v ¥69 '€ 0070 65°500°6 00°00L°CT 0000 [042u0) 333[q0

T Th'¥69°¢ 00°0 6$°500°6 00°00L°7T [e301 [0J3U0)
1. Tr'969°¢ 00°0 65°500°6 00700421 "SUI 3417 dnoy 0000-000T-0T¢-200
IINVINSNI dNO¥D 0000-0000-0T¢-200

.8 1YY 00°050°T PET 85T 007005 ‘¢ 0000 [043u0 32340

{8 b SSh 007050°T pE 7852 00°00°¢ {E301 |0J3U0D
/8 1Y 00°050'T yE 7882 00°005 ‘€ 9ULIJRAQ [BLPOISN) 0000-0T92-0€T-¢00
IWILYIA0 0000-0000-0¢£T-200

86 96°7ES‘Y 16°086°LL 87°TIE ' ¥61 §1°528°947 0000 L043u0> 333(q0

86 96'Z€S Y 16°086' L. 82" T1¢ 'v61 §1°628942 [B30L [0J3U0)
00T 0070 00°0£9'T2 00" 7118 00°2v0'€L SILAIIS |BLIURULS 0000-0TS¢-TTT-00
96 ¥6"7ES Y $6"926'vE ST'E74'88 ¥0°€88° LT 3481 ULUpY paLiliad 0000-0T#Z-TTT-200
001 00 96°€7v 12 AN TAA TT°006°5. JU3pud3L LI3dns 0000-02€2-T1T-200
JALLVYLSININGY 0000-0000-TTT-Z00

16 £9°€9'87 26'7.8'8. TC Ty 56T 9/°08L°70¢ 0000 [043u0) 133(q0

16 £9°€9¥ 82 26'%48°8L T2 ' s61 9.°08L"70¢ {E301 |0JU0)
4] bS"6L2' 11 STL6T €€ T wI'Te 00°6T9 €T SOLJE[ES [BLPOISM) 0000-0T9¢-0TT-200
56 65" 8¥L'T 81" LEL'G 11797152 86°T199¢ SILIB|BS ULWPY P3LYLIJBIUON 0000-0T¥Z-0TT-200
001 00°0 £9°221'6 §L'160°€2 8¢ 02" t¢ JB|BS 331140 JUIPURIULIAANS PALYLIIBIUON 0000-02£2-0TT-200
96 05" 5Ev'? £1°669°LT L£°9L6' 2y 00"60T°€9 3SJNN 0000-0€TZ-0TT-00
00T 00°0 £9'201'6 LU L60'€T 0v"022'z¢ S3LJB|BS ULWPY PadS paLyL1IaIuON 0000-002T-0TT-200
SITYVIVS 1¥0ddNS 0000-0000-0TT-200

00T 000 00°0 00°092°¢ 00092 0000 [043u0) 322(qo

001 00°0 00°0 00°092°7 00092'2 (301 |042U0D
001 00°0 00°0 00°092'7 00'092°¢ *INp3 "33 - 6ULIOINLY |00YIS JBUlNS 0000-0021-60T-200
T00HIS ¥3WKNS 0000-0000-60T-200
pasn % Due|eg 0d Jaqunoul @l papuadx3a  33bpng paijLpow uoLadLaasag pI 1UNOIIY
1J0d3y aJn3iLpuadx3 woIsnd |Le3d £707 W /2360
7 :ON 3bed UoLIBINP3 JO PJPOY JIAOPUY €207 ‘9 [Lady



201 -8LTEY 82°9¢L'y 00°SEZ'¥T 00° 075 8T sadLasas Adedayl [eaLshyd 0000-0£TZ-0¢€-200
{11 -08' 7209 9775601 9" 22T S¢ 00°000°0% $32LAJ3S | Bu0L1edNII0 0000-09TZ-0¢¢-200
69 89605 '€ 26 ST9'4T 00°869°7T 00°€78"0¢ $32LAI3S [edLBo|0yIASd 0000-0¥12-02€-200
Tl T6°€00° ST ¥ L00'6 SL 876" L1 00000°2S p3ds - SIAS p3 |BUOLSSIJONd 0000-00¢T-02£-200
0 -00°00¢ ‘2 00°0 00°00€‘? 00°0 SIAS [BUOLSS9404d MaJd 6700-000T-02€-200
SIAS TYNOLLYINGI TYNOISSIH0Ud 0000-0000-02€-200
89 00°9T¢ 00°0 00" 439 00°000°T 0000 |0J3u0> 333(q0
89 00" ST¢E 00°0 00°539 00°000°T LBI0L [0J3U0D
89 00°9T¢ 0070 00°589 00°000°T W43 pJeod 0000-0T£2-0T£-200
IDIAYIS FATLVIISININAY 0000-0000-0T€-200
06 2790765 00°09¢ ‘€8 09" /8T"€0§ 09°S6¥'ET9 0000 [0J1u0d 323(qo
06 2" 90P6S 00°09¢'¢8 09" /81'€0S 09° 67 ‘€19 [e10L [0J3U0)
06 2" 90% 65 00°09¢ ‘€8 09" £8T°€0S 09°S6v €19 S}Ljausg [BILPpAN 0000-000T-08¢-¢00
S1I4INIE TVINIQ B TWOIGIW 0000-0000-082-200
¥1 00'T€Z'2 00°0 00°69¢ 00°009°¢ 0000 (043u0) 323(q0
12! 00°1€2"2 00°0 00°69¢ 00°009°¢ [£301 {0J2U0D
b1 00°T€2'? 00°0 00" 69¢ 00°009°¢ uoLyesuaduo) Juswko| duaun 0000-000T-092-200
"dW0) LNIWAOTWANN 0000-0000-092-200
0 00°000'ST 00°0 00°0 00°000°ST 0000 (04103 133(q0
0 00°000°ST 00°0 00°0 00°000°ST |e10L |0J1U0D
0 00°000°ST 00°0 00°0 00'000°ST RUETENIRED 0000-000T-092-200
1N0ANG INIWIYILIY 0000-0000-0¥2-200
0 §9°£86' T 00°0 £ 15h o 10795748 0000 (041u0) 373(q0
0§ $9'€86'TY 00°0 'y 10798 't8 (BI0L [043U0D
0¢ 9 €86 TP 00°0 s L0°9¢h' 48 uoLsudd 0000-000T-0¢¢-00
NOISN3d 0000-0000-0€2-200
9 91" Lpe'sT 0070 80 L2L Ly b2 0L 0000 L0J3u0d 333(q0
59 91" LhE" ST 00°0 80°22L Ly b pL0'EL [B30L [0J3u0)
pasn 4 3due|eg 0d J3qundu3 QLA papuadx3  336png paL)Lpow uoL1dL43s9a pI 1UN0JJY
1J0day aJnyLpuadx3 woisn) |Lead £707 WY /7360

¢ 0N 3beq

UOLIBINPI JO pJeog JIAOpUY

€207 ‘9 Ly



0000 (oJ3u0d 133[q0

£9 €57 96L°C 0070 57 608"y 00°009°,
£9 §6°962'T 00°0 ShUE08‘y 00°009"2 {el0L [043U0D

99 66667 00'0 Shvr9'y 00'000°2 [BUL0SJ3d - JAS |BILUYIAL 0000-0.52-05€-200
97 00 THy 00'0 00°6ST 00009 (s4iedas) SIILAJDS [BILUYIDY ILSNW #000-000T-05¢-200
SIIIAYIS TVIINHIIL 0000-0000-08£-200

8¢T -2 T60'1¢ 00°0000¢ L0°S50°6F 69" Zv6 €S 0000 042u0) 333[q0

86T -20° 260" 1€ 00°000'9¢ L0°S50 6% 9" 7v6° LS (€204 {0J2U0)
0 00°000°02 00°0 00°0 00°000°0Z Wwedboud younT - JAS Joud J3Y10 0000-00T¢-0¥€-200
088 -26°999° %k 00°000°9¢ 2698¢' T 00005 S S2DLAJDS |BUOLSSD0d ABO|OUYDAL ULWpY 0000-085Z-0t¢-200
1 05°210°¢ 00°0 09 /8 00°005'¢ [3UU0SJ3d - SOAS |BUOLSS3J0Ud 0000-0£52-0v€-200
101 -00'0ST 000 68°760'9T 8 7v6' ST [BISLd - IAS JOud JIYID 0000-0T5Z-0v¢-200
£9 09° /9% 00°0 0p'TEs 00°000°T [edLoULId - DAS JOud JBY30 0000-0T¥Z-07E-200
0 00°000°T 00°0 00°0 00°000°T JAS J0d JAYI0 - IUIPUAIULIAANS 0000-0Z£Z-07¢-200
T6¢ -00"9£5 ‘Y1 000 00°9£S'6T 00°000"S pJeog - JAS |BUOLSS3J0J4d JaUl0 0000-0T£Z-0%E-700
0 00°000°T 00°0 0070 00°000'T ueLILSAyd [00YIS 0000-0£TZ-0€-200
0 00°000‘T 00°0 00°0 00°000°T SOAS {BUOLSS?J0Ud JBYIQ pIdS 0000-002T-0v€-200
SIIIAYIS TYNOISSIH0¥d ¥3IHLO 0000-0000-0¥£-200

1 00" Ly 000 00°€16'T 00°096'T 0000 [0J3u0) 193[q0

U 00" L¥b 00°0 00°€16'T 00°096°T |B30L [0J3U0D
88 00°5L 00°0 00°52¢ 007009 bututed) Jyeis saLiL|ided £297-£172-08¢-200
1§ 00111 000 006 00°09T 3pedd yIxLs - butuled) jjeis 9200-£TZZ-0£€-200
0 00'08 00°0 00°0 00°08 3peJn Y144 - bululedl jye3s §200-£122-0£€-200
0 00°08 00°0 00°0 00°08 9peJD Y1inod - bulures) 4yeis #200-£T22-0£€-200
16 00°0¢ 00°0 00'0s¥ 00°08% ape.d pJiyL - bututeds jyeis £200-€122-0£€-200
0 00'0 00°0 00°0 00°0 9peJD puodds - Bululedl }jeis {200-£T2¢-08€-200
0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 3peJY 3sdLd - BuluLedL }4e1S T200-€T22-0££-200
00T 00°0 00°0 00°09T 00°09T U33JeJapuLy - buluLedL 4jels 0200-£T2Z-0££-200
28 00'1/ 00°0 00'62¢ 00" 00¥ PaL}L1I3) UoN - Bututed) yjeis 0000-£T2Z-0¢€-200
SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIH0¥d 0000-0000-0¢£¢€-200

£6 T0°£06°6 09°T8¢ ‘6¢ (R 7h {3 00" €95 T¥T 0000 |0Ju0d 323(qo

£6 10° 066 09° T8¢ ‘6¢ 6¢'vL2'26 00'£9S ‘THT |P0L [0JIU0D
0 00007 00°0 00'0 00°00¢ pJeog - SIAS |Bu0LSS3)0.d 0000-0T€£2-02€-200
pasn 3Jue|eg 0d Jaqunou3 QLA papuadx3  3abpng patLyLpow uoL1dLJdSaq PI UNOIY
140d3y aJniLpusdx3 wolsn) |Lelad £707 W /260

b :ON 3bed

UOLIBINPI JO PJBOY JAAOPUY

€207 '9 Ly



0000 [043u0) 132[q0

£6 69°STS 0T ££°6.5"6Y ¥£'069'68 9¢"S8L 641
£6 69°STS 01 ££°6L5 61 b€ 06868 9¢°58L 61 [P30L |043U0D
111 -€9° 89S Y 61'98/'ST 61°99¢'T¢ TE'909 7y uoL3eyJodsuesl pads 6000-00£2-015-200
98 7€' %90° ST 85265 €S ST°925'8S §0'T8T" 0T uotyelodsues L 0000-00£2-0T5-200
NOILV.I¥OdSNVYL IN3ANLS 0000-0000-075-200
1 08 T 9¢ 04589 00°0 00°000°£€ 0000 [043u0) 333[qo
1t 0E" T 9 0472589 00°0 00°000°¢¢ (301 {0J3U0D
0 00°000°€2 00°0 00°0 007000°€2 aueuduLeW B JLeday Abojouydal uLupy 0000-085Z-2£7-200
69 08 v s 0L158'9 00°0 00700001 juten B JLeday AbojouyddL |BUOLIINIISUI 0000-0£22-2£4-200
TONYNIINIVW B ¥IVdFY ADOTONHIIL 0000-0000-2€7-200
£6 b9 GEE Y 90'T9¢'6 0£°665" LY 00'262'T9 0000 [043u0d 33[qo
£6 b9 SEE ‘Y 90°19¢'6 0£'565'Ly 00°262'19 {301 |043U0D
0 00°000'¢ 00°0 00°0 00°000°¢ @dueualuLew ududinba - bud youm 2292-00T€-0£4-200
0 00" 005 00°0 000 00°00§ Sateda. uoLyelsodsuesL 0000-00£2-0£7-200
18 69°ShE'T 00°0 TT'#58°S 00°00¢°Z K13jes - juLen B Jieday 0000-0£92-0¢7-200
0 00°000°T 00°0 000 00°000°‘T A1Ln9S - JuLeW B Jledoy 0000-0992-0£7-200
26 59" 0S¥ ST6%0'S 00°0 007005 "¢ SPUNOJY - 3UBUIIULEW § JLeddY 292-0£92-0€9-200
6 0$°021'T 00°0 05"6.€ 00005 JusudLnba 4oopano jo .JLeddy 129-0£92-0£7-200
g £9' 456 00°0 ANY; 00°000°T "$3AS buLuea|d-A1L| Loe4 $792-0292-0¢4-200
59 870687 00°ST? 9/'T6T'S 70" L62'8 JOLIAIUT - 3DUBURIULEH AIL|LJed £292-0292-0£-200
00T 00°0 £2789'1 £2°02L'6 96" 20¢'1T buLues|> sdo AyL[Laed $792-0192-0£-200
86 £9° /91 00°0 L1106 00°002'6 3JUBUDIULEN JOLIAIUT - sdo Bulp|Lng £292-0T92-0£4-200
0 00°260°T 00°0 00°0 00°260'T uawdLnb3 JuLeW B Jleday 2292-0T92-05%-200
812 -$$°90¢'8 00°966'T 19°TE8' €T £1°T20'L JVAH suoLie.ado Bulp|ing w 9 ¥ 1292-0192-0£7-200
00T 00°0 89°8TY 61°090'% 1881y suotieJado butp|Lng - Julew § Jieddy 0000-0T92-0¢7-200
0 00" 001 00°0 00°0 00001 3JUBUIJULEW B JLed3Y SIDLAIIS Y1[B3H 0000-0£TZ-0£7-200
STDIAYIS IONVNILNIVW 7 ¥IVdRd 0000-0000-0£7-200
18 08°0£0'T 00°0 00°697'y 00°00S"S 0000 (043u0d 333(qo
18 09'0£0'T 00°0 02'69%'y 00°00§S [€301 {0JIU0D
0 00°000'T 00'0 00°0 00°000°T SpunoJs - JAS Buluea|d ¥292-0£92-02r-200
66 08" 0¢ 00'0 02'69%'% 00005y Butuea|d A3L[1oe4 §292-0T9Z-024-200
IDIAYIS ONINVIT) 0000-0000-02-200
pasn % aduejeg 0d J3qunoul QLA popuadx3  33bpng paLLpow uoL1dLi3s3q pI JUN0dJY
14003y aunjLpuadx3 woisn) |LeIdd £7207 W 22:60

¢ 10N dbeg

UOLIBINPI JO PJBOY JDAOPUY

€202 '9 [Lidy



0 00005 00'0 00'0 00005 [aAR4) - sdo Bulp(ing 0000-0T92-085-200
0 00" 08¢ 00'0 00°0 00° 0S¢ 3bea| L - SIILAJIAS [BISL] 0000-0T52-085-200
0 00°00T 00'0 00'0 00" 00T S9LILALIDY JUBPNIS-|3ARIL 0000-0672-085-200
0 00002 00°0 00°0 00" 002 [BARJL ULWpY 0000-0T¥Z-085-200
67 ST'6L1 00'0 SL'0LT 00°05¢ [3ARJ3 - JUBpURIULIAANS 0000-02£2-085-200
0 00" 0¥T 00'0 00°0 00" 0¥T abea|Lw - butuled) 4jels 0000-£T22-085-200
8 9.2 00°0 85'€7 00°00¢ *pads/[anedL }Je1S 0000-002T-085-200
13AVIL 0000-0000-085-200

05 9T"STH' ST 09°9%S ‘b€ $0°8€0°80T 00°000°88¢ 0000 |043u0) 333[do

05 91" STh b1 08" 9%5 ‘bE ¥0"9£0°90T 00°000°882 [B301 |0J2U0)
e 97" STY' L21 08" 9¥S‘ ¥€ $0"8€0°90T 00°000°0L2 ‘p3 [BLI3dS /3uBuURdE|d1N0 0000-002T-095-200
0 00°000°8T 00'0 00°0 00°000°8T $100y2S 13ubew 0000-000T-095-200
NOLLINL 0000-0000-095-200

78 00°005‘T 00" 007‘€ 1°209'% TT°205°6 0000 L0J3u0> 333(q0

3 00°00‘T 00°00p'€ T1°209°Y T1°205'6 [B0L |0.J3U0)
0 00°005'T 00°0 00°0 00°005'T 6utputg/BuLiutid 0000-0T#2-055-200
00T 00°0 00°00'¢ 112091 11°£00°8 Butiutad - yoaL paje(sy IsuI 0000-0£22-055-200
ONIQONIE B ONILNI¥d 0000-0000-095-200

% 00" 096 00'0 00°0%0'T 00°000°2 0000 (043u0) 323[qo

143 00°096 00°0 00°0%0‘T 00°000°2 |B20L [0JIU0)
67 00°89/ 00'0 00'2€L 00°005'T SIAS |2UU0SJad - BulsLitanpy 0000-0£52-0¥5-200
29 00° 261 00°0 00°80¢ 00005 buis3uanpy 0000-02£2-0¥5-200
DONISILYIAQY 0000-0000-0%5-200

08 T9°TT5"S 9 287y £6° 065" L1 00°S8T" 22 0000 [0J3u0d 333(q0

08 19°TT§'¢ A £6°06€ LT 00°$8T°22 (B301 [0J3U0)
£ £0°20'Y 00°9¢6 20°£9'¢ 60" £25°8 s394 B sasuadL ABojouydaL uupy 0000-0852-05-200
3 7S°689 9" 9¢¢ 00°pEH'L 00°099°8 (3uLud p abe3sod) uoLieILUNUWO) ULWPY 0000-0T#Z-0£5-200
00T 00°0 00°808'7 16°686°9 16°261'6 S394 B sasuadL| ABojouydar [euoi1dnJisuI 0000-0£22-0€5-200
0 00° 052 00°0 00°0 00°052 ueM140s AJedgLl 0000-0222-0£5-200
SNOTLVOINNWWOD 0000-0000-0¢£5-200
pasn % alue|eqg 0d Jaquniul QLA u%cmgxm p@mgm paL)Lpon =o.5Q.:u$o PI 1Unoddy
1J0d9y dJn1Lpuadx3 wWosn) [LeIAA €207 W /7:60

g :oN 3bed

UOLIEINPI JO PueOg JIAOPUY

£207 '9 | Ludv



0z 20°9.£°9 00'0 86°€79'T 00°000'8 saL|ddns Bulues|d A3L|Loey $292-0T9Z-019-200
9 pS 59y'T 86°¢€7 £6°728'T $8'TIE'E JOLJIIUT - SBLIL|LIRS - SaL|ddns £292-0T92-079-200
00T 00°0 GT*881 ST°881 0€°9.¢ JuaudLnby - A3L|toed - sai|ddns 2292-0192-0T9-200
0 99" /9% 00°0 00°0 99" 29% DVAH S3L3L[ LB 1292-0192-019-200
00T 00°0 00°0 ¥0° 871 $0"82T suoLieaado butp|tng - sat|ddns 0000-019Z-019-200
0 00°002 00°0 00°0 00'002 S3)LAJ3S |3UU0SJ3d - saL|ddns 0000-0£52-019-200
o £2'65¢ 00" 0¢ LL"96€ 00°000°T $3)LAJRS |BISL4 - saL|ddns 0000-0T5Z-019-200
0 00° 005 00°0 00°0 00" 005 S3L1LALIOR apeub y3g - saL|ddns 9200-06+2-019-200
0 00'00T 00°0 00°0 00" 00T S3L1LALIDY JU3pnis-saL|ddns 0000-06¥2-019-200
001 00'0 00°0 00°00¢ ' 00°00¢ ‘2 saL|ddns 31440 0000-0T#2-079-200
8¢ 90°TTZ 00°0 76987 00005 saL|ddns - 331440 uapudluLI3dns 0000-02£2-019-200
9¢ NI 89" /91 $6'91T 00°058 saL|ddns 308 0000-0T€Z-019-200
89 08" ¥6 00°0 07°507 00" 00¢ saL|ddns BuLisaL 0000-0722-0T9-200
¥4 98, 00°0 9" TT7 00°000'T saL|ddns ABojouydal 0000-0£22-019-200
0 18981 000 000 18981 saL|ddns AsesqLy 0000-0222-019-200
00T 00°0 00'0 6T ETS'T 6T €T6°T BuLuledy yJe1s - saijddns 0000-£T22-079-200
S 9 LET 00'0 §$ 71T 00'05¢ sat|ddns Adesayr uoiednddp 0000-09TZ-0T9-200
95 20°60T 00'0 86°0vT 00'05¢ saL|ddns yoaads 0000-0STZ-0T9-200
6 06029 00'0 0T°6/8 00°005°T ABo|oydAsd - saL|ddns 0000-0¥T2-0T9-200
1§ T T2 00°0 688§ 00'059 saL|ddns y3[esH 0000-0£TZ-0T9-200
0 00" 002 000 00'0 00" 002 SIAS YoM [LD0S - s3L|ddns 0000-0TTZ-0T9-200
8¢ 89°8TS'T 26°09 070202 00°009'¢ *p3-ds-satjddns (euoL1dnIISUT 0000-002T-0T9-200
0¢ 16" 8¢ £9°491 00°0 00° 05§ saL|ddns apess y19 9200-000T-0T9-200
001 00°0 00°0 00°002 00' 002 saL|ddns apess yig $200-000T-019-200
Ov £7° 18T ¥6'67 £9°98 00" 00¢ saL|ddns apeJs y1p ¥200-000T-019-200
97 Wy 000 881/ 00°00§ saL|ddns apeJs pug £200-000T-0T9-200
7 7226 00°0 89" £0¢ 26°$6¢ saL|ddns ape.n puodas 2200-0001-079-200
86 66°Y 86" 72 §uT 00°002 saL|ddns apess 15414 1200-000T-019-200
0¢ 20°08¢ 00°Z1 86° /€T 00" 00§ saL|ddns ualJebuapuLy 0200-000T-0T9-200
0 -68" /8¢ p8° L1¢ 50 0L 00'0 saL{ddns |0oydsasd 6T00-000T-0T9-200
1 §9'9.¢ 00°0 G €71 00" 005 saL|ddns 2y 6000-000T-0T9-200
0t 89 6.1 00'0 5021 00" 00€ saL|ddns dLsnw #000-000T-019-200
0 00" 00¢ 00'0 00°0 00°00¢ saL|ddns p3 sAyd £000-0001-079-200
Sy 16" 60T 000 £0'06 00°002 saL|ddns abenbue1 p|Jom 2000-000T-019-200
00T 000 25082 05°'28¢'€ 29819 saL|ddns [euoL1anJ1suI 0000-000T-0T9-200
S3I7ddNS TVYINTD 0000-0000-019-200

01 19°5vL'T 00°0 £5 96T 00°0v6°T 0000 [0J1u0d 133(qo

01 19521 00°0 £ Y61 00°0%6°'T {6301 [0J3U0)
pasn 4 due|eg 0d Jagundu3 QLA papuadx3  1abpng paL)Lpow uoL3dLadsaq PI IUN02DY
1Joday 3unyLpuadx3 woisn) |LeIaa £707 W /260

] ‘0N abed

UOLIBINPI JO pJeOg JIAOPUY

£207 ‘9 | Lidy



0 00" 052 00'0 00'0 00' 052 3pRJY Y39-33U3LdS-s3L| ddng 9200-000T-£19-200
0 00°0ST 00°0 00°0 00°0ST apedb y1g - sat|ddns uaLds $200-000T-£19-200
0 00°00T 00'0 000 00°00T saL|ddns 32uaLds apeJd pag £200-0001-£T9-200
0 00°002 00°0 000 00° 002 9peI9 pUZ-dUdLIS-sL|ddns 2200-000T-£19-200
0 00"08 00°0 00°0 00°0S 9peJD IST 3URLIS-S3L|ddns 1200-000T-£19-200
0 00°000'T 00°0 000 00°000°T LIS -s3L|ddns 0000-000T-£T9-200
$3I7ddNS IINITIS 0000-0000-£T9-200

l§ 7" 299 000 65" /8¢ 00°050°T 0000 [043u0) 333(q0

43 T9°299 00°0 65'48¢ 00°050°T (2301 |[0J43U0D
00T 00°0 000 L30T L' 80T apesb 439 - yiew - satjddns 9200-000T-219-200
0 00°0§ 000 00°0 00°0§ apedb y3g - yiew - A|ddns $200-000T-219-200
I Th' €S 00°0 65" 97 00°00T 3peJ9 Yp-UIew-saL dns ¥200-000T-219-200
0 82°Th 00°0 00°0 87'TH 3peJd pag-yIen-sat|ddns £200-000T-219-200
0 00° 0S¥ 000 00°0 00° 0S¥ U33sebJapuLy-Y1ew-s3L| ddns 0200-000T-219-200
I U9 00°0 82° 267 00°00¢ Y3ew-saL|ddng £000-0007-219-200
S3I7ddNS H1ww 0000-0000-¢19-200

s 00° 205 00°0 00°86S 00°00T‘T 0000 L043u0) 333(qo

#s 00'20S 00°0 00" 865 00°00T'T |B30L |043U0)
0 00°0S 00°0 00'0 00°0§ apesb Y19 - v13 - sav|ddns 9200-000T-T19-200
0 00" 05 00°0 00'0 00°0$ apeub y1g - v13 - sat|ddns §200-000T-T19-200
0 00'§? 00°0 00°0 00°57 apeJy yip-y13-saL|ddns ¥200-000T-T19-200
0 00°08 00°0 00°0 00°0S 9peJ pag-y13-saLjddns £200-000T-T19-200
0 00°S2 00°0 000 00'S? apeJs puz-v13-sai|ddns 2200-000T-119-200
0 00'52 000 000 00'S2 3peJn 1ST-v13-s3L|ddns 1200-000T-TT9-200
89 00" 42 00'0 00" 865 00°5/8 13 saL|ddns T000-000T-TT9-200
S3I7ddNS v13 0000-0000-TT9-200

L5 7€' 25881 $9°798°¢ 20798207 00°00S ‘¥ 0000 1041u0) 123(qo

L5 yE 2881 19°198"¢ 2079802 00°00S €% |B30L |043U0)
28 ST'06 000 68" 60% 00°005 saL|ddns 321AJ3S pood 0000-00T¢-0T9-200
8/ 5 65h 00'0 Ch' 0951 00°000°7 f33jes - sat|ddns 0000-0£92-019-200
0 00°000'T 00°0 0070 0070001 A3L4n%9s - saL|ddns 0000-0992-0T9-200
69 06°50¢ 00°0 0T" 769 00°000'T SpunoJy - sat|ddns ¥292-0£92-019-200
19 22°909 00°0 156 PpEpS‘T JOLIAWT - saL|ddns A3L]|Loed £292-0792-0T9-200
00T 00°0 00°0 L6001 L€ 04T s3aL(ddns |eipoisn) 0000-0292-019-200
pasn % 3due|eg 0d Jaqunou3 QLA papuadx3  1abpng paLtLpow uoL3dLJ353q PI 1UNOJDY
1Joday aunyipuadx3 woisn) |Le3aa £707 W /7:60
g :oN afied UOL1BINP3 JO pJEOg JIAOPUY £207 ‘9 [Lady



a b1 280'6 00°0 92°927'T 00°60¢€ ‘0T [9s3Ld 0000-00£¢-6¢9-200
135310 0000-0000-6¢9-200
0§ IVALTA! 00°0 YA A 00°05¢ 0000 L043u0) 338[q0
0¢ TL°STT 00°0 YA 248 00°05¢ [e30L [0J3U0D
0§ JVATAN 00°0 (YA 741 00°05¢ SpunoJs 0000-0£9¢-9¢9-200
INIT0SYD 0000-0000-929-200
01 -08"980‘T 00°0 08°975°€9 00 0¥y ‘29 0000 [042u0) 333(q0
w0t -08°980'T 00°0 08°925'€9 00"0p¥°29 |BI0L |043U0D
o1 -08°980'T 00°0 08'926'€9 00°0v¥'29 | Lo buL1eay 0000-0T9¢-¥29-200
ONILYIH/TIO0 0000-0000-7¢9-200
0¢ {8° L8 00'0 8T'29¢ 00°00Z'T 0000 [043u0) 333(40
0t 888 00°0 81" 79¢ 00°002°1 [e30L [0J3u0)
0¢ (8°L£8 00°0 81" ¢9¢ 00°002°T auedo.d 0000-0192-£¢9-¢00
Sv9 311108 0000-0000-£¢9-200
T6 96" €719 00" 25681 6¢"00. '6¢ 56°592‘19 0000 [0J3u0) 133(q0
16 95" €T1‘9 00°256'ST 6€° 002 '6¢ §6°S9L'¥9 (B30L [0J3U0D
16 95" €11'9 00°256°8T 6€00. ‘6€ §6°592°49 A1101439|3 0000-0T9¢-¢29-200
ALIDI¥D3T3 0000-0000-229-200
0 00°S.2 00°0 00°0 00° 5.2 0000 Lo43u0d 33(q0
0 00°942 0070 00°0 00'622 {e10L |0J3U0)
0 00°0ST 00°0 00°0 00°0ST saL{ddns salpnls |BLI0S BpE.D Y19 9700-000T-¥19-200
0 00°00T 00°0 00°0 00°00T apeub 3§ - Apas |eLdos - saL|ddns £200-0001-+19-¢00
0 00°S¢ 000 00°0 00°52 S3L|ddns saLpnls |LI0S 3peJD paE £200-0007-+19-200
S3I7ddNS SITANLS TVIDOS 0000-0000-¥19-200
0 00°052'T 00°0 00°0 00°0SL'T 0000 L043u0d 133(q0
0 00°08L'T 00°0 000 00°082°T |B0L [0J3u0)
pasn % e eg 0d J2qundu3 QLA papuadx3  336png paL)Lpow uoL3dLJasaa PI JUN0dIY
1003y 3Jn1Lpuadx3 wolsn) |Lelsa £707 WY /2:60
6 :ON dbed UoLyednp3 JO pJeOY JBAOPUY €207 ‘9 [Lady



0000 L043u0) 333[qo

0 00°0§ 00°0 00°0 00" 0§
0 00° 0§ 00°0 00°0 000 [e0L [0J3U0)
0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 S3LPMS [BLIOS 9peJT Y1y #200-000T-¥9-200
0 00°0 00°0 00°0 0070 apedb puz sx008 S3LPMIS [BLIOS £200-000T-¥¥9-200
0 00°0S 0070 00°0 00° 09 3pedb 1ST )00 S3LpnlS |BLIOS TZ00-000T-#¥9-200
$M008 SITANLS VIS 0000-0000-419-200
0 0070 00°0 0070 00°0 0000 [043u03 333[q0
0 00°0 00°0 0070 00°0 [B10L |0J3U0)
0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00'0 Y1e-sxyooq £000-000T-2¥9-200
SY009 HLvW 0000-0000-¢¥9-200
£ SN 00°0 99" €T 68°0¢¥ 0000 1043u0) 333{q0
£ £eT LT 00°0 06 €T 68°0¢p [e301 |0J3U0D
001 00°0 00°0 99" €T 96'¢T apeab Y19 - v13 - syoog 9200-000T-1¥9-200
0 00°0¢ 00°0 0070 00°0§ apeJb yag syoog v13 §200-000T-T#9-200
0 00° 05T 00'0 00°0 00°0¢T 9peJd Yip-v13-$400d #200-000T-T#9-200
0 00°0 00°0 0070 000 8peJd pJg-¥13-sy00d £700-000T-1%9-200
0 00°0¢T 00°0 00°0 00°0ST 9peJd puz-vI13-$4008 £200-000T-T49-200
0 00°09 00°0 0070 0009 8peJd 1ST-Y13-5%008 T200-000T-T#9-200
0 €€ 1T 00°0 00°0 g u3y.ebuaputy syooq v13 0200-000T-T#9-200
0 00°0 00°0 0070 00°0 ¥13-s)j008 T000-000T-T%9-200
$HM009 v13 0000-0000-T¥9-200
U ¥s1 9Tz 0070 9 Gb§ 00729 0000 (043u0) 323[qo
U 912 000 0" SH§ 00'292 [ €301 {0J3U0]
001 000 00°0 00" 21T 00" 21T S{BILPOLIId/SH008 AJeJqLT 0000-0222-019-200
0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 S|edLpoLJad § syooq p3ds 0000-00¢T-0¢9-200
0 00°04T 00°0 00°0 00°0ST S|edLpoLJad B s)00q JLSN $000-000T-0%9-¢00
8 999 00°0 9" EEy 007009 §)009 1xal 0000-000T-0%9-200
SI¥)IA0I¥3d/SH009 0000-0000-0%9-200
a 7.'780'6 00°0 92°92¢'1 00°60€ ‘0T 0000 [041U0d 333[q0
a 27806 00°0 92'922'1 00°60¢ ‘0T [BI0L |043U0D
pasn % 3due|eg 0d Jaqunou3 QLA papuadx3  1abpng paL)Lpow uoL1dLJds3a pI 1uUnoddy
1Joday 3uniLpuadx3 woisn) |LeI3q £207 WY /2360
(T :oN 3fed uoLIeINp3 10 pJeOg JIAGPUY €207 ‘0 |Lady



[B30L (BULS

68 €665 651 69 065°890°T  #SUESLLSST YET/BL'TSO'Y
0 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 po1abpng-uoN |euld
68 £°616 65 677 065'890°T  PSTESLUUSS'T  vEL8L'TS0'F pa1abpng [euLd
68 €616 "6k 60065 890°T  SUESL'LSS'T  vEL8L°TS0'Y [e30L pun4
0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 pa1abpng-uoN pund
68 £ 6T 65k 67°065°890°T  PSTESLLSS'T  wEL8L'T50'Y pa1abpng puni
€L 1675807 00°0 80°¥9L°S 00°058°L 0000 [0J3u0> 129[q0
£l 26°680'7 00°0 80°992"S 00°058°L (0301 |043U0D
% 0002 00'0 00087 00" 006 suolieJado buip(ing - s394 0000-0T92-0T8-200
18 00°0ST 00°0 00099 00°008 S3DLAJRS [BISLS - S3aNG 0000-0TSZ-0T8-200
0 00" 00T 00°0 00°0 00" 00T 1Y - S3LILALIDY JUBPNIS - S394 $000-06¥2-018-200
0 00" 00T 00°0 00'0 00°00T JLSAW - SBLILALIDY 1UapMs - $334 %000-06¥2-0T8-200
0 00" 056 00°0 00°0 00°056 S3LILALIDY 3U9pNIS - 394 0000-06¥2-0T8-200
8 WIET 00°0 85°819 00°052 $334/sana [edidLuldd 0000-0T#2-0T8-200
001 000 00°0 00°05T'2 00°05T 7 $394/53nQ Ju3pUdILLIAdNS 0000-02£2-0T8-200
68 05" ¥E€ 00°0 05°598'T 00°002'2 $924/59nq 308 0000-0T£Z-0T8-200
0 00 05T 00°0 0070 00°0ST $394/59nQ AJeaqLl 0000-0222-0T8-200
0 00°0ST 00°0 00°0 00°0ST S3DLAI3S Y3 BBH - S3NG 0000-0£TZ-0T8-200
$334 B Sana 0000-0000-0T8-200
01 ¥8°95€ ‘2T 00°0 OT"EHE‘T 00°00L €T 0000 {043u0) 333[g0
01 b8 9SE 2T 00°0 9T Epe'T 00°002'€T |B30L |043U0D
0 oo.ooN”H 00°0 00'0 00°002'T saL|ddns AbojouydaL ulupy 0000-0852-059-200
0 00°000"€ 000 00°0 00°000°¢ JUBUSS3sSY Juapnis - sat|ddns ydaL 0000-0722-059-200
9 009507 00'0 00" Z¥T 00°002'7 ududLnb3 | |ews-ue|d Abojouydal 0000-0¢22-0$9-200
81 p8'96¢"S 00'0 91°T02'1 00°009°9 p3 [eLOadS - saL|ddns yaL 0000-002T-059-200
0 00" 002 000 00°0 00°002 abenbue p|.om-ABo|ouydaL 2000-000T-059-200
0 00" 005 00'0 00°0 00" 005 [BUOLIINJISUT - saLiddns ydaL 0000-000T-059-200
YIQ3W/431ndW0d 0000-0000-099-200
pasn % adue|eq 0d Jaqunoul QLA popuadxa  abpng paL}Lpow uoL1dLaIsag pI 1UN0IY
14002y Jn3Lpuadx3 wolsn) |Llelaq £707 WY /7:60
1T :ON d6ed uoLIeInp3 Jo pJeog Janopuy €207 ‘9 [Lady



1500 Relations between Area, State, Regional and National Associations and the Schools
1412 Fire Department

1411 Law Enforcement Agencies

1350 Senior Citizen Benefits

1331 Smoke Free Environment

1330 Use of Facilities

1326 Solicitations By Staff Members

1324 Soliciting Funds from and by Students

1316 Relations Between Public and School Personnel
1313 Gifts to School Personnel

1312 Public Complaints

1311 Community Relations Political Activities of School Employees



1311.1

Community Relations

Political Activities of School Employees

The Board of Education recognizes the right of its employees, as citizens, to engage in political
activity. However, the Board recognizes that school property and school time are paid for by all the
people of the District, and should not be used for partisan political purposes, except as provided for
in policies pertaining to the use of school facilities by civic and political organizations.

Prohibited activities include the posting of political circulars or petitions, collection or solicitation
of campaign funds, solicitations for campaign workers, the use of students in writing or addressing
campaign materials, and the distribution of campaign materials to students on District property or
during school time in any manner which would indicate that a school employee is using a position
in the school to further personal partisan views on candidates for public office or questions of
public property. Teachers and other District employees will not attempt to influence students
concerning political party affiliations and will not praise or denigrate any particular political party.

Nothing in this policy will be interpreted as prohibiting teachers from conducting appropriate
activities that encourage students to become involved in the political processes of the party of the
students’ choice or as independents; nor does it prohibit the use of political figures as resource
persons in the classrooms.

(cf. 1140 — Distribution of Materials by Students)

(cf. 1311.2 — Political Activities in the Schools/On School Board Property)
(cf. 1330/3515 — Community Use of School Facilities)

(cf. 3543.13 — Mail and Delivery)

(cf. 4118.21 — Academic Freedom)

(cf. 6144 — Controversial Issues)

(cf. 6153.2 — Student Participation in Election Process)

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
7-421 Political activities of classified municipal employees.
7-421b Limitation on restriction of political rights of municipal employees.
9-369b Explanatory text relating to local questions.
10-156e Employees of boards of education permitted to serve as elected
officials; exception.
10-239 Use of school facilities for other purposes
31-51q Liability of employer for discipline or discharge of employee on
account of employee’s exercise of certain constitutional rights.
Keyishian v. Board of Regents 395 U.S. 589, 603 (1967)
Academic Freedom Policy (adopted by Connecticut State Board of
Education, 9/9/81)
Equal Access Act, 20 U.S.C. ss 4071-4074

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1311.2

Community Relations

Posting of Political Signs on School Property

The Board of Education strongly believes that its school and the property upon which it is situated
should be used first and foremost to enhance the education of Andover’s children. In keeping with
the belief, it is the desire of the Board of Education to foster neutrality in political matters except as
used for instructional purposes. In support of this belief, the Board prohibits the posting of political
signs on property exterior to the school building.

Legal Reference:

Policy adopted:

Connecticut General Statutes

7-421 Political activities of classified municipal employees.

7-421b Limitation on restriction of political rights of municipal employees.
9-369b Explanatory text relating to local questions.

10-156e Employees of boards of education permitted to serve as elected
officials; exception.

10-239 Use of school facilities for other purposes

31-51q Liability of employer for discipline or discharge of employee on
account of employee’s exercise of certain constitutional rights.

Keyishian v. Board of Regents 395 U.S. 589, 603 (1967)

Academic Freedom Policy (adopted by Connecticut State Board of
Education, 9/9/81)

Equal Access Act, 20 U.S.C. ss 4071-4074

January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1312(a)

Community Relations

Public Complaints

The Board of Education welcomes comments and suggestions for improvement from the citizens
whom it serves. Constructive criticism of the schools is welcome whenever it is motivated by a
sincere desire to improve the quality of the educational program or to allow the schools to do their
tasks more effectively. However, the Board has confidence in its professional staff and desires to
support their actions in order that they be free from unnecessary, spiteful or negative criticism and
complaint. Therefore, whenever a complaint is made directly to the Board as a whole or to a Board
member as an individual, it will promptly be referred to the school administration for study and
possible solution.

Since individual Board members have no authority to resolve complaints, other than by formal
Board action, Board members shall refer persons making complaints about the schools to the most
immediate level at which the problems can be resolved and, as may be necessary, through lines of
organization to the Superintendent of Schools. The Board expects that the administration will
develop a procedure for receiving complaints courteously and that it will take steps to make a
proper reply to the complainant. Follow-up shall be in the form of a written memorandum to the
Board members.

Anonymous complaints provide no avenue for response or redress of the complaint. Therefore, it is
the policy of the Board that such complaints will not be pursued. An unsigned complaint will not be
read or acted upon at any meeting of the Board and anonymous telephone complaints will not be
brought to the Board by any individual Board member, administrator or other District employee.
The administration will not act on any anonymous complaint.

Parents should be made aware of the proper channels of communication and appeal. Complaints for
which specific resolution procedures are provided shall be directed through those channels. The
decision of the Principal regarding a student must include notice to the parents of the next step of
appeal. Any appeal from the decision of the Superintendent to the Board shall be in writing and
signed.

Complaints should be resolved at the lowest possible level of authority. If the complaint cannot be
resolved at the building level, either party is encouraged to bring the matter to the attention of the
Superintendent of Schools.

If all other remedies have been exhausted and a complaint cannot be satisfactorily resolved, the
complaint may be appealed to the Board of Education. No appeal will be heard by the Board and no
charges or accusations against an employee will be investigated unless the accusations are reduced
to writing, signed by the party making the complaint, and presented to the Board through the
Superintendent.



1312(b)

Community Relations

Public Complaints

In all cases, the decision to retain or reject challenged materials shall be made on the basis of
whether the material represents life in its true proportions, whether circumstances are realistically
dealt with, and whether the material has literary or social value. Factual material shall be included
in all instructional material collections.

The Board will not consider or act upon complaints that have not been explored at the appropriate
level or complaints for which specific resolution procedures have been established that do not
include Board review. If the Board decides to hear the complaint, the Board shall make a decision
which shall be sent to all interested parties. The Board’s decision is final.

(cf. 1220 — Citizens’ Advisory Committees)

(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)

(cf. 6144 - Controversial Issues)

(cf. 6161 - Equipment, Books, Materials: Provision/Selection)

Legal Reference: Keyishian v. Board of Regents 385 U.S. 589, 603 (1967)

President's Council, District 25 v. Community School Board No. 25 457
F.2d 289 (1972), cert. denied 409 U.S. 998 (1976)

Minarcini v. Strongsville City School District, 541 F. 2d 577 (6th Cir.
1976).

Board of Education, Island Trees Union Free School District No. 26 .
Pico, 457 U.S. 853 (1982).

Academic Freedom Policy (adopted by Connecticut State Board of
Education, 9/9/81).

Connecticut General Statutes

10-238 Petition for hearing by board of education.

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1313

Community Relations
Gifts to School Personnel
The giving of gifts to teachers and other school personnel is discouraged. In place of gifts, parents

are encouraged to write letters to the Board of Education expressing appreciation for the service of
the teacher or other person.

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1316(a)

Community Relations

Relations Between Public and School Personnel

Conduct on School Property

The Board of Education expects mutual respect, civility and orderly conduct among all
individuals on school property or at school events. District staff will treat parents and other
members of the public with respect and expect the same in return. The Board is committed to
maintaining orderly educational and administrative processes in keeping schools and
administrative offices free from disruptions and preventing unauthorized persons from entering
school/district grounds.

This policy promotes mutual respect, civility and orderly conduct among Board members, district
employees, parents and the public. It is not intended to deprive any individual of his/her right to
freedom of expression, but only to maintain to the extent possible and reasonable, a safe,
harassment-free environment for students and staff.

In the interest of presenting Board members and District employees as positive role models to the
students as well as to the community, the Board encourages positive communication and
discourages volatile, hostile or aggressive actions. The Board seeks public cooperation with this
endeavor.

Based upon the above, the Board expects that no person on school property or at a school event
shall:

1. Injure, threaten, harass or intimidate a staff member, Board member or any other person;
2. Damage or threaten to damage another’s property;

3. Damage or deface District property;

Violate any Connecticut law or town/city ordinance;

Smoke or otherwise use tobacco products;

I

Consume, possess, distribute, or be under the influence of alcoholic beverages or illegal
drugs, or possess dangerous instruments or weapons;

7. Impede, delay, or otherwise interfere with the orderly conduct of the District’s educational
program or any other activity occurring on school property;

8. Enter upon any portion of the school premises at any time for purposes other than those
which are lawful and authorized by the Board;

9. Operate a motor vehicle in a risky manner or in violation of an authorized District
employee’s directive; or

10.  Violate other District policies or regulations or an authorized District employee’s directive.



1316(b)

Community Relations

Relations Between Public and School Personnel

Conduct on School Property (continued)

(cf. 1110.1 - Parent Involvement)

(cf. 1120 - Public Participation at Board of Education Meetings)
(ef. 1250 - Visits to Schools)

(cf. 1251 - Loitering or Causing Disturbances)

(cf. 1312 - Public Complaints)

(cf. 1330 - Use of School Facilities)

(cf. 6145.71 - Use of Alcohol by Adults)

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
1-225 Meetings of the government agents to be public.
1-232 Conduct of the meeting
10-221 Boards of education to prescribe rule(s), policies, and procedures.
10-238 Petition for hearing by board of education.
10-239 Use of school facilities for other purposes.

53a-185 Loitering in or about school grounds: Class C misdemeanor.

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1324

Community Relations

Soliciting Funds from and by Students

Fund-raising activities may be approved by the Superintendent of Schools consistent with the
following guidelines:

1. Fund-raising is in connection with school-sponsored projects. Requests for approval of
fund raisers shall be made and approved, in writing, on the form provided.

2. There are sufficient educational or financial benefits which will accrue to the school and/or
students, either directly or indirectly, from the activity.

3: The mechanics or procedures of fund-raising will neither be an unacceptable burden to
teachers or other school staff members nor subject the school to inappropriate risks or
responsibilities in handling funds.

Upon approval by the Superintendent, information from recognized charitable and other
organizations which could eventually result in voluntary student and/or parental activities,
contributions, or memberships of benefit to the organization may be distributed through the
schools. In these instances, the distribution of material would be the only school involvement on
behalf of the organizations.

There shall be no direct solicitation of funds by outside organizations from students except on
specific approval of the Board of Education.

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1326

Community Relations

Solicitations by Staff Members

The Board of Education, recognizing its responsibility in the matter of solicitations, shall strive
to safeguard from exploitation the students, parents, staff members, school system and
community.

Therefore, no staff member shall use professional relationships with students for private
advantage; nor shall any staff member use his/her position to influence parents or students of the
school system to purchase instructional supplies, equipment or books, or sell to any student or
parent any instructional supplies, equipment or books except those expressly approved for
classroom or school-related use by the office of the Superintendent.

No staff member shall furnish lists of students or parents names, addresses and telephone
numbers, or any other information, to anyone for solicitations unless prior approval is granted by
the Office of the Superintendent.

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1330(a)

Community Relations

Community Use of School Facilities

Community organizations shall be permitted and encouraged to use school facilities for worthwhile
purposes (when such uses will not interfere with the school program) in the following order of

priority:

Public Emergency

Town of Regional Meetings

School Functions

Local Community Organizations — Free Use
Local Community Organizations — Rental Use
Private or Outside Organizations

AR .

Application for a single use of school facilities shall be made in writing to the Principal at least
seven days in advance of the desired date. For regular use of facilities throughout the upcoming
year or a major portion of the year, applications should be made in writing to the Principal after
June 30 and no later than August 15. Applications for recurring facilities use which are received
after August 15 will be considered if facilities are available. Applicants for the use of school
facilities must abide by all Board of Education regulations for the use of the school. The Principal
shall maintain a calendar of activities. School functions will supersede all other groups except
Town or regional meetings. Public emergencies will supersede all group meetings.

The Principal is authorized to approve and schedule the use of school facilities and terminate such
approval, pending Board of Education review, if he/she considers this action necessary. He/she
shall discuss with the Superintendent of Schools any questions he/she might have concerning
particular applications for the use of the school.

The schoel facilities shall be closed to community groups, except for Town or regional meetings,
during the following periods:

1. From August 1 until the day after Labor Day;
% On days when school is closed early or for the day because of weather conditions or
mechanical breakdown.

Community use of the school facilities during vacation periods will be restricted to avoid conflict
with school maintenance and repair schedule.



1330(b)

Community Relations
Community Use of School Facilities (continued)

There will be no rental fees charged for the use of the building to non-profit, duly-recognized
community groups. There will be no rental fees charged when community groups charge admission
fees, if the proceeds are to be expended for an educational, civic, or charitable purpose.

There shall be rental fees charged for building uses not outlined above in accordance with the fee
schedule established annually by the Board of Education.

Law enforcement coverage, if required, shall be paid by the organization using the building. The
Board may charge for other necessary services if required. Town agencies financed through local
taxation shall be exempt from such charges.

Decisions about whether or not custodial, cafeteria, or law enforcement coverage is required, the
amount to be charged, and arrangements for such coverage shall be the responsibility of the
building Principal.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
10-239 Use of school facilities for other purposes.
PA 97-290 An Act Enhancing Educational Choices and Opportunities
Equal Access Act, 20 U.S.C. ss 4071-4074
Good News Club v. Milford Central School ,Sup.Ct., 6-11-01
20 U.S.C. 7905 (Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act contained in No
Child Left Behind Act of 2001)

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1330

Community Relations

Andover Recreation Commission Use of School Facilities

1. The key provided to the Recreation Commission will open only the gymnasium wing
outside door and the door to the gymnasium itself. Recreation Commission users of the
gymnasium will restrict their presence in the building only to the gymnasium and adjacent
rest room facilities.

2 Recreation Commission use of the gymnasium will, in all cases, be scheduled in advance
through the Andover School main office. A copy of the school form, “Request for Use of
School Building,” will be completed and signed by a Recreation Commission
representative for each use of the gymnasium.

3, All community recreation use of the facility will be scheduled by the Recreation
Commission. If other community groups request, through the school, use of the
gymnasium for recreation purposes, the school will refer such groups to the Recreation
Commission.

4. For Recreation Commission use of the gymnasium during times when janitor service is
not scheduled in the building, the Recreation Commission assumes responsibility for
maintaining the cleanliness and security of the building.

5. It must be recognized that during periods of school closure, school scheduling of cleaning
and maintenance in the gymnasium must take precedence over outside use of the
gymnasium. Any anticipated use of the facility during such periods should be checked out
well in advance with the school Principal.

6. Any damage to school equipment or property while being used by the Recreation
Commission will be reported immediately to the building Principal.

7. Any injuries will be reported in writing, and in detail to the building Principal, no later
than noon on the day following the accident or injury.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
10-239 Use of school facilities for other purposes
PA 97-290 An Act Enhancing Educational Choices and Opportunities
Equal Access Act, 20 U.S.C. ss 4071-4074
Good News Club v. Milford Central School, Sup.Ct., 6-11-01
20 U.S.C. 7905 (Boy Scouts of America Equal Access Act contained in
No Child Left Behind Act of 2001)

Regulation issued: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1330.1

Community Relations

Use of School Facilities

Use of School Fields by Outside Organizations

The Board of Education favors the use of athletic fields under its jurisdiction by local citizens
subject to the following conditions:

1. The needs of the schools shall have precedence. Only when the schools are not using their
playing fields shall they be made available for use by the public.

2. Only fields in adequate playable condition will be available for public use. The Board of
Education, through the Superintendent or his/her designee, will be the sole judge of the
suitability of their condition for use. The Superintendent or his/her designee reserves the
right to cancel previously approved field requests based upon current field conditions,
weather forecasts, etc.

3. No unusual maintenance, upkeep, or alteration of school fields will be done by outside
organizations without specific approval of the Board of Education, through the

Superintendent or his/her designee.

4. The agent of the Board of Education for the implementation of this policy will be the
Superintendent of Schools, or his/her designee.

(cf. 1330 — Use of School Facilities)

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1331

Community Relations

Smoking

The Andover Board of Education is committed to maintaining and improving the health and well-
being of its students. Medical research shows that smoking and other tobacco use poses a
significant risk to the health of the smoker and non-smoker.

It shall be the policy of the Board of Education that no smoking or other use of tobacco related
products be allowed on school property at any time, on any transportation provided by the Board of
Education, or during the course of any trip or activity sponsored by the Board of Education.

Further, it shall be the policy of the Board to provide all students in Andover programs as directed
by Section 10-192 of the Connecticut General Statutes. It is expected that these programs will help
students to become more aware of health hazards caused by smoking and tobacco use and better
informed about the diseases related to such use. In addition, it is also expected that these programs
will aid students in developing constructive attitudes and help them make wise decisions about
smoking and tobacco use.

The administration is charged with developing regulations to enforce this policy. Penalties for
infractions of smoking regulations must be consistently administered to both students and Board
employees.

The administration will provide accurate up-to-date materials and resources for an effective and
stimulating instructional program in this important health area. Programs for those desiring to
terminate tobacco use prior to implementation of this policy are to be provided.

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
19a-342 Smoking prohibited in certain places. Signs required. Penalties.
21a-242 Schedules of controlled substances.
PL 107-110, Section 4303, “Non-smoking Policy for Children’s Services”

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1350

Community Relations

Senior Citizens’ Benefits

The Board of Education recognizes the contribution senior citizens have made to the support of
education and wishes to encourage their continued support and participation in school sponsored
events.

To this end, the Board of Education offers to any senior citizen 60 years of age or older a 50%
discount on the admission to any school sponsored activity such as athletic functions or musical
events.

The Board of Education also encourages booster organizations and parent groups which sponsor
school events to offer discounts to senior citizens whenever possible.

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1411(a)

Community Relations

Relations with Law Enforcement Agencies

Schools are responsible for students during school hours. This responsibility includes protecting
each student’s constitutional rights, assuring due process in questioning and arrest, and protecting
students from any form of illegal coercion. Because of the many support services that local law
enforcement agencies provide to the schools, staff, and students, the State Board of Education
supports the best possible relationship with those agencies consistent with the system’s
responsibilities to protect legal rights of staff and students.

This policy is intended to balance the needs of school and police officials. The reduction of
ambiguity and confusion in how these officials interact will provide an optimal environment for
education while ensuring that the public safety needs of the school and community are adequately
met.

Interview of Students

Police interviews generally will not take place on school grounds. However, if the police do
indicate that an interview on school grounds is necessary, school authorities may cooperate.
When the interview involves a juvenile, a parent must be present. The exceptions to this rule are
(a) if the student is being interviewed as a victim and/or (b) if there is an overriding immediate
public safety concern. If a student under the age of 16 is being interviewed by the police and the
parent/guardian cannot be present, a member of the school staff should be present.

When police are investigating possible criminal acts which occurred, or may have occurred, on
school property, or while under the jurisdiction of the school district, they may question students
at school when the following procedures are observed:

1. Students will be questioned as confidentially and inconspicuously as possible.
An attempt will be made to notify the student’s parents so that they may be
present during the questioning. The school Principal, or his/her designee, will be
present.

3; Preferably, the officer doing the questioning will wear civilian clothes.

When investigating a possible criminal violation occurring off school grounds or not part of a
school program, police will be encouraged to question students in their homes; however, they
may be permitted to question students in the schools when the procedures outlined in 1-3 above
are observed. Police will make every attempt to minimize distractions or disruption of school
routines during the performance of their duties.



1411(b)

Community Relations
Relations with Law Enforcement Agencies (continued)
Arrest of Students

The decision to call police and request an arrest is within the discretion of the building
administrator. The Principal may request the arrest of a student or there are times in which the
police may request to pick up a student due to a warrant being issued for his/her arrest. If the
school Principal agrees to assist in the arrest of a student, the student shall be escorted from class
by school personnel and remain in a secured office until the police arrive. The arrested student
will be removed from the school in a way that minimizes embarrassment to the student and nay
disruption of the school routine.

Weapons

In cases where a student is suspected of carrying a dangerous weapon and there is a safety issue
inherent in the search process, the student shall be secured in a private area and the police should
be contacted to conduct the search.

If a search is conducted by a school official and a weapon is found, weapons that are illegal
should be turned over to the police immediately by the school official. Iliegal weapons include
knives with over a four-inch blade, dirk knives, switchblade knives, martial arts weapons and
firearms. Ammunition should also be immediately turned over to the police. Weapons that are
not illegal but are a violation of school policy may be retained by the Principal.

Designation of Authority

The Superintendent is authorized to develop procedures regarding this policy, including a process
to ensure that appropriate staff has been informed, and to establish lines of communication with
local law enforcement agencies to effect necessary cooperation toward ensuring the security of
the school facilities, and the safety of students and staff.

(cf. 5145.12 Search/Seizure)

Legal Reference: Connecticut General Statutes
10-221 Boards of Education to prescribe rules
53a-185 Loitering in our about school grounds: Class C Misdemeanor
54-76j Disposition upon adjudication as youthful offender
New Jersey vs. T.L.O. U.S. 325 (1983)

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1412

Community Relations

Fire Department

Members of the Volunteer Fire Department and the Town Fire Marshal play a vital role in the
school safety program. The Superintendent of Schools and administrative staff shall have the
following responsibilities:

L Establish and maintain relationships with the local Fire Marshal and Fire Departments.

P Work with the faculty in determining the nature and timing of the Department's
participation in the school program.

3, Coordinate and supervise planned activities.

As necessary or appropriate administrators shall seek the advice and cooperation of the Fire
Marshal and Fire Department in:

1. Planning and conduct of fire drills.

2. Fire prevention education.

3. First aid, especially in fire related incidents.
4, Conforming to state and local fire codes.

(cf. 6114 - Emergencies and Disaster Preparedness)

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



1500

Community Relations

Relations Between Area, State, Regional & National Associations and the Schools

Membership in recognized associations such as the Connecticut Association of Boards of
Education will be maintained by the schools for several reasons, including:

L. benefits to staff and Board of Education from professional meetings, conferences, clinics
and conventions.

2. access to the communication media of such associations, such as newsletters, periodicals
and advisory services.

3. representation in legislative and other actions affecting education generally and our school
district in particular.

The Superintendent of Schools shall budget funds for memberships approved by the Board and for
the costs of appropriate participation by Board members, administration and staff in the activities of
such associations.

Policy adopted: January 14, 2009 ANDOVER PUBLIC SCHOOLS
Andover, Connecticut



BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING, APRIL 19, 2023:

ACTION ITEM(S)

ltem 7.E.1:  Vote to Accept Revisions/Review of 1000 Series, 1100’s & 1200’s, Board of

Education Policies.



